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The purpose of this amendment is to answer questions received from potential offerors 
and revise the Performance Work Statement. 
 
Question 1:  Is the NTE amount of $720,000 correct?  What is the reasoning why the 
government is not allowing for an Economical Price Escalation for each of the Option 
Years.   
 
Answer 1:  Section B of the solicitation is revised to remove all dollar amounts.  A 
reasonable yearly escalation of the hourly rate is an acceptable practice. 
 
Question 2:  Please clarify why in L-4 it states that “submission of cost or pricing data is 
not required” when that contradicts L-14 request for a price proposal with supporting 
documentation. 
 
Answer 2:  In a competitive requirement such as this the government must adhere to the 
pricing policy addressed at FAR 15.402.  The contracting officer shall not require 
submission of cost or pricing data to support any action (contracts, subcontracts, or 
modifications) (but may require information other than cost or pricing data to support a 
determination of price reasonableness or cost realism. 
 
Question 3:  Please provide the number and types of servers and workstations. 
 
Answer 3:  There are 21 servers and 58 workstations/laptops (Windows 2000 & 2003 
servers, Windows 2000 & XP). 
 
Question 4:  In the QS part what is meant by “no valid complaints”? 
 
Answer 4:  If a complaint is received from a customer, the contractor has an opportunity 
to dispute the complaint.  If the government overturns the complaint, the situation 
becomes “no valid complaint”. 
 
Question 5:  L-13 (c) (a) states that the offerors are encouraged to submit their past 
performance information prior to other parts of the proposal to speed up the evaluation 
process.  Must these be submitted the same as the proposal or can they be submitted 
electronically via email? 
 
Answer 5:  The past performance report which is available electronically in full text at 
http://heron.nrl.navy.mil/contracts/home.htm may be provided electronically via email to 
wayne.crupi@nrl.navy.mil 
 
Question 6:  L-13 seems to be a complete departure from the requirment to submit 
resumes only for key personnel.  Are we to submit resumes for every person we are 
considering submiting?  Do we have to submit a resume for every labor category with a 
named person and a resume? 

http://heron.nrl.navy.mil/contracts/home.htm
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Answer 6:  The Key personnel clause in Section H of the contract will be completed at 
time of award to identify all key personnel categories by name.  The key labor categories 
are identified in the solicitation as the Project Manager/Sr Systems Administrator and the 
Human Resources Automation Expert. Resumes for the persons identified for those two 
categories must be provided.  Substitution of key personnel during the performance of the 
contract will be handled in accordance with H-3 ONR 5242.237-9705 – KEY 
PERSONNEL (DEC 88).  Resumes must also be provided for individuals proposed for 
the remaing labor categories that reflect the required capablilies in order to evaluate your 
proposal in accordance with Section M of the solicitation.  (Only one resume is required 
for an individual perfoming more than one of the part-time labor categories.) 
 
Question 7:  I know the government does not require a sealed bid submittion.  However, 
is it required to submit the detailed cost breakdown of each labor rate? 
 
Answer 7:  In order to support a determination of price reasonableness or cost realism a 
breakdown of the loaded labor rates is required. 
 
Question 8:  Paragraph 3.6 on page 2 of Attachment 1, seem to require all maintenance 
including repair/replacement. Does this require the offeror to be a certified Dell, HP or 
other hardware maintenance provider? 
 
Answer 8:  No.  Repair is typically a warranty manangement program, unless the 
hardware is beyond warranty. 
 
Question 9:  Given that the solicitation requires maintenance not to interfere with HRO’s 
mission (per attachment 3, page 2), is the contractor expected to furnish substitute 
capabilities if something gets shipped back to the vendor for repair or replacement?   
 
Answer 9:  No 
 
Question 10:  This seems to imply that a maintenance “pool” be available, who bears the 
cost of maintaining this replacement pool of IT equipment?   
 
Answer 10:  The Human Resources (HR)  office maintains a replacement pool of IT 
equipment. 
 
Question 11:  Is there a planned procurement to refresh aging IT for HRO? 
 
Answer 11:  No, not at this time. 
 
Question 12:  Is the contractor expected to keep upgrading and maintaining IT gear in 
lieu of replacement?   
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Answer 12:  Yes, the contractor is expected to upgrade and maintain the current IT gear 
as required utilizing the replacement  pool of IT equipment provided by the government. 
 
Question 13.  Do all servers have an uninterrupted power supply (UPS) as part of the 
basic network architecture? 
 
Answer 13:  Yes 
 
Question 14:  What is the size of current full backups? 
 
Answer 14:  200GIG 
 
Question 15:  What is the current backup plan?   
 
Answer 15:  Differential and Full 
 
Question 16:  What technologies are in place to affect backups?   
 
Answer 16:  Veritas Backup Exec 10D 
 
Question 17:  Is there off-site backup? 
 
Answer 17:  No, it is unnecessary 
 
Question 18:  Is there a current Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) for HRO’s 
network? 
 
Answer 18: No, not at this time. 
 
Question 19:  What is the current security plan, specifically regarding 
verification/validation of scans and implementation/tracking of Information Assurance 
Vulnerability Assessments (IAVAs)?  Are there any current technologies in place for 
network monitoring/threat reporting? 
 
Answer 19:  The Naval Research Laboratory provides vulnerability scans and 
maintenance, as well as IAVA reporting via website by division network technical 
representatives. 
 
Question 20:  Are current HRO HRM software applications certified and accredited?   
 
Answer 20:  NRL requires hardware and OS to be registered and certified via NRL 
security group. 
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Question 21:  Will the contractor be expected to produce documentation for Designated 
Approval Authoirty (DAA) signature as part of an overall effort to achieve compliance 
per applicable Information Assurance (IA) regulations? 
 
Answer 21:  No 
 
Question 22 :  Are there any security requirments to be considered or any security 
clearances required? 
 
Answer 22 :    While a security clearance is not required at this time, all proposed 
personnel must have a favorable adjudicated personnel security investigation (ie, a basic 
background check). 
 
Question 23:  What is the “personal demonstration project” referred to on Page 1 of 
Attachment 1?  Where can we find information about this project?   
 
Answer 23:   http://www.opm.gov/fedregis/html/jun_99.htm   
 
Question 24:  Does anyone else besides HRO utilize the Polycom Video Conference 
facility? 
 
Answer 24: No 
 
Question 25:  How many “unique applications/systems” currently are in use in HRO?  
Besides the MS.NET architecture, what other toolsets are used by these applications 
 
Answer 25:  Approximately 15 unique applications/systems are in use. Other toolsets 
used by these applications consist of J2EE, PHP and ASP 
 
Question 26:  How many Apple Macintosh workstations are in use?   
 
Answer 26:   Two (2) 
 
Question 27:  Who controls the MS SQL Server?  What is the expected complexity of the 
proposed “integrated information database”?  Are there any requirements articulated yet 
for this database?  How many “data sources” are expected to be included in the integrated 
database? 
 
Answer 27:  The HR office controls the server.  It is anticipated that the “integrated 
information database” will be a fairly complex project due to the multiple data sources. 
The requirements for the database are currently in draft form, however due to security 
 
 

http://www.opm.gov/fedregis/html/jun_99.htm
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issues this document will only be provided to the company awarded this solicitation.  
Approximately four (4) to seven (7) “data sources” are expected to be included in the 
integrated database. 
 
Question 28:  What are the manufacturer(s) of the government-owned equipment 
included in 3.6?  Is there an existing inventory of assets (including current 
age/condition)? 
 
Answer 28:  The government-owned equipment consists of HP, Dell, and Gateway 
machines. Inventory list will be provided at time of award. 
 
Question 29:  What backup media are now in use for the various servers? 
 
Answer 29:  The backup media is disk. 
 
Question 30: Would the government consider a site visit? 
 
Answer 30: No. The government does not believe a site visit is necessary at this time. 
 
 
 
The Performance Work Statement is revised as follows: 
 
ATTACHMENT (1) – Paragraph  3.6 – Page 2 of 3 
 
The following sentence reads: 
 
Maintenance parts shall be furnished on an exchange basis, and the replaced parts 
become the property of the contractor. 
 
The sentence is revised to read: 
 
Maintenance parts purchased for exchange, repair or replacement remain the property of 
the government.  
 
 


